
PLEASE POST NOTICE OF MEETING PLEASE POST

LUDINGTON BOARD OF EDUCATION - LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan 49431 – Phone 231-845-7303

This is a meeting of the Board of Education in public for the purpose of conducting the School District’s business and is
not to be considered a public community meeting. There is a time for public participation during the meeting as
indicated on the agenda.

Mission: The Ludington Area Schools, in partnership with the community, will achieve excellence in a positive
environment where motivation and quality instruction ensure learning and equip students for success in society.

MEETING: Regular Meeting
DATE: September 18, 2023
TIME: 6:00 p.m.
PLACE: Administration Office, 809 East Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, MI 49431

REGULARMEETING

1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
_ Steve Carlson _ Dr. Bret Autrey _ Mike Nagle _ Stephanie Reed _ Sarah Lowman _ Leona Ashley _ Scott Foster

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. AGENDA MODIFICATION
4. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
5. CONSENT AGENDA

a. Ratification of Bill Payment - Per Summary Dated: September 18, 2023
b. Approval of Minutes Dated: August 21, 2023 Special & Closed, Regular & Closed
c. Hiring Approvals & Resignation Acceptances

6. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS
a. Personnel/Negotiation Committee Report
b. Finance Committee Report
c. Building/Site Committee Report

7. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT & COMMENTS
a. Soaring Oriole Award

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #41
b. Equipment Purchase Kubota UTV
c. Furniture Purchase MS/HS Bond Project
d. FOIA Appeal

9. ACTION ITEMS
a. Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #41
b. Equipment Purchase Kubota UTV
c. Furniture Purchase MS/HS Bond Project
d. Closed Session Pursuant to Section 8(1)(h) of the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(1)(h)
e. FOIA Appeal Resolution

10. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS & ANNOUNCEMENTS
11. ADJOURNMENT

Official minutes of the Ludington Board of Education are available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Board of Education’s
Central Business Office, 809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan. The Ludington Area School District is an equal opportunity employer and
provider. If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of special accommodations to attend or participate in a public meeting please
contact Superintendent at 231-845-7303 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting or as soon as possible.



Memorandum - Office of the Superintendent 

TO: Board of Education
FROM: Dr. Kyle Corlett, Superintendent
RE: Regular Meeting Agenda Notes

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
Review Board Policy 0167.3: Public Participation at Board Meetings

The Board of Education recognizes the value of public comment on educational issues and the
importance of allowing members of the public to express themselves on District matters.

To permit fair and orderly public expression, the Board shall provide a period for public participation at
every regular meeting of the Board and publish rules to govern such participation in Board meetings.
The rules shall be administered and enforced by the presiding officer of the meeting.

The presiding officer shall be guided by the following rules:

A. Public participation shall be permitted as indicated on the order of business, or at the discretion
of the presiding officer.

B. Participants must be recognized by the presiding officer and will be requested to preface their
comments by an announcement of their name, address, and group affiliation, if and when
appropriate.

C. Each statement made by a participant shall be limited to three (3) minutes duration.
D. No participant may speak more than once.
E. Participants shall direct all comments to the Board and not to staff or other participants.
F. The presiding officer may:

1. interrupt, warn, or terminate a participant's statement when the statement is too
lengthy, personally directed, abusive, obscene, or irrelevant;

2. request any individual to leave the meeting when that person does not observe
reasonable decorum;

3. request the assistance of law enforcement officers in the removal of a disorderly person
when that person's conduct interferes with the orderly progress of the meeting;

4. call for a recess or an adjournment to another time when the lack of public decorum so
interferes with the orderly conduct of the meeting as to warrant such action;

5. waive these rules with the approval of the Board when necessary for the protection of
privacy or the administration of the Board's business.

G. The portion of the meeting during which the participation of the public is invited shall be
limited to thirty (30) minutes, but the timeframe will be extended, if necessary, so that no one's
right to address the Board will be denied.

H. Tape or video recordings are permitted. The person operating the recorder should contact the
Superintendent prior to the Board meeting to review possible placement of the equipment, and
agrees to abide by the following conditions:

1. No obstructions are created between the Board and the audience.
2. No interviews are conducted in the meeting room while the Board is in session.
3. No commentary, adjustment of equipment, or positioning of operators is made that

would distract either the Board or members of the audience while the Board is in
session.

I. Each Board agenda will include the following statement, "Public participation shall be permitted
only as indicated on the order of business.”

Revised: January 21, 2019

Legal: M.C.L.A. 15.263(4)(5)(6), 380.1808



Regular Meeting
CONSENT AGENDA

● Hiring Approvals
○ Lavelle Jennings, Bus Driver
○ Rebecca Huffman, Food Service Aide
○ Chelsea Sobanski, Library Aide
○ Marla Turner, Food Service Aide
○ Troy Veeneman, JV Girls Basketball Coach
○ Jennifer Willis, Food Service Aide

● Non-Union Contract Approval
○ Jessica Castonia, Special Services Coordinator

● Resignation Acceptances
○ Krystal Austin
○ Lisa O’Connor

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT

Soaring Oriole Award
I will present the monthly Soaring Oriole Award.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #41
We will need an action item at the Board meeting to approve the certificate for payment on the school
bond project and to authorize the District to pay $4,061,410.43 as certified by the architect and
construction manager, and as outlined in the Certificate for Payment. The certified pay application has
been shared with the Board.

Equipment Purchase Kubota UTV
We obtained two quotes for a Kubota to be used for landscaping needs, with the cheapest and
recommended one being $37,594.62 from Freeman Creek.

Furniture Purchase MS/HS Bond Project
For the latest phase of construction, the classroom and office furniture needed amounts to $68,865.82.

FOIA Appeal
An appeal to a FOIA request was made regarding information shared during a closed session at the
August regular board meeting.



ACTION ITEMS

Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #41
Board President: We will need a motion to approve the certificate for payment on the school
bond project and to authorize the District to pay the certificate for payment in the amount of
$4,061,410.43 as certified by the architect and construction manager, and as outlined in the
Certificate for Payment.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the certificate for payment on the school
bond project and to authorize the District to pay the certificate for payment in the amount of
$4,061,410.43 as certified by the architect and construction manager, and as outlined in the
Certificate for Payment.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Sarah Lowman (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____ MOTION: Passes / Fails.

Equipment Purchase Kubota UTV
Board President: We will need a motion to approve the purchase of a Kubota RTV-X100 in
the amount of $37,594.62 from Freeman Creek as presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the purchase of a Kubota RTV-X100 in
the amount of $37,594.62 from Freeman Creek as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Sarah Lowman (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____ MOTION: Passes / Fails.

Furniture Purchase MS/HS Bond Project
Board President: We will need a motion to approve the furniture competitive bid contracts
as written and presented in the amount of $68,865.82.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the furniture competitive bid contracts as
written and presented in the amount of $68,865.82.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Sarah Lowman (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____ MOTION: Passes / Fails.



Closed Session Pursuant to Section 8(1)(h) of the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(1)(h)
Board President: We will need a Motion by the Board to reenact its August 21, 2023, motion
to enter closed session pursuant to Section 8(1)(h) of the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(1)(h), to
consider a written legal opinion from its attorneys, for the reason that the written legal opinion is
exempt from disclosure under state law due to the attorney-client privilege.

Motion by Member ___________________________, Motion by the Board to reenact its August 21, 2023,
motion to enter closed session pursuant to Section 8(1)(h) of the Open Meetings Act, MCL
15.268(1)(h), to consider a written legal opinion from its attorneys, for the reason that the written
legal opinion is exempt from disclosure under state law due to the attorney-client privilege.

Support by Member ____________________.
TWO THIRDS VOTE REQUIRED: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Sarah Lowman (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____ MOTION: Passes / Fails.

FOIA Appeal Resolution
Board President: We will need a motion to approve the FOIA Appeal Resolution as written
and prepared by Thrun Law Firm.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the FOIA Appeal Resolution as written
and prepared by Thrun Law Firm.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Sarah Lowman (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____ MOTION: Passes / Fails.



Period: 8/12/23 through 9/14/23

GENERAL OPERATING FUND
Payroll 8-4-23 568,047.53          
Payroll 8-18-23 599,323.69          

Total Payroll 1,167,371.22       

Bills (08/12/23  through 09/12/23) 7,159,935.26       

TOTAL GENERAL OPERATING FUND 8,327,306.48      

 
TOTAL ATHLETIC FUND
Bills (08/12/23  through 09/12/23) 9,476.23              

TOTAL FOOD SERVICE FUND
Bills (08/12/23  through 09/12/23) 35,411.96           

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS
Bills (08/12/23  through 09/12/23) 8,372,194.67      

RATIFICATION OF BILL PAYMENT

September 18, 2023



Current
Year

Assets

       Savings/Checking Accounts 6,081,666$          
       Investments -$                     
       Taxes Receivable -$                     
       Accounts Receivable 149,151$             
       Due from Other Funds (1,337,158)$         
       Due from Other Governmental Units 7,309$                 
       Inventory -$                     
       Prepaid Expenses -$                     
       Other Assets -$                     

Total Assets 4,900,967$      

 Liablities and Fund Equity

Liabilities:
     Accounts Payable (104,321)$            
     Payroll Liabilities (114,988)$            
     Accrued Expenses -$                     
     Due to Other Funds 1,697,076$          
     Due to Other Governmental Units -$                     
     Deferred Revenue 179,764$             
     Note Payable -$                     

Total Liabilities 1,657,532$          

Fund Equity:
     Inventory  (Reserved) -$                     
Other Fund Balance 3,243,436$          

Total Fund Balance 3,243,436$          
  

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 4,900,967$      

 
 

  

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
BALANCE SHEET

For the Month Ending August 31, 2023



 
 
REVENUES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Rcvd

Local 19,717,347$   1,301,230$      18,416,117$   6.60%
State 6,363,672$     15$                  6,363,657$     0.00%
Federal 599,734$        192,486$         407,248$        32.10%
Transfers 651,724$        -$                 651,724$        0.00%

 
Total Revenue 27,332,477$   1,493,731$      25,838,746$   5.47%

 
EXPENDITURES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Spent

Instruction/Basic 13,229,086$   426,515$         12,802,571$   3.22%
      /Added Needs 4,343,524$     113,086$         4,230,438$     2.60%
Support Service/Pupil 1,124,422$     36,441$           1,087,981$     3.24%
     /Instructional 1,068,428$     135,597$         932,831$        12.69%
     /Gen.  Admin. 499,519$        99,491$           400,028$        19.92%
     /School Admin. 1,972,954$     256,104$         1,716,850$     12.98%
     /Business 557,471$        163,719$         393,752$        29.37%
     /Oper. & Maint. 2,254,326$     264,294$         1,990,032$     11.72%
     /Transportation 1,209,012$     120,017$         1,088,995$     9.93%
     /Central Services 191,648$        54,548$           137,100$        28.46%
     /Athletics 851,677$        150,136$         701,541$        17.63%
    /Comm Services 217,390$        8,981$             208,409$        4.13%
     /Transfers 90,000$          4,136$             85,864$          4.60%

Total Expenditures 27,609,457$   1,833,064$      25,690,529$   6.64%
 

(339,332)$        
net cash flow

Expected Fund Balance 6/30/23 2,776,463$     
 

  
 Budgeted Ending Fund Balance 2,499,483$     

Month End Fund Balance 2,437,131$      

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending August 31, 2023

Prepared by the Business Office



 
 
REVENUES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Rcvd

Tax Revenue Sinking 378,143$        36,976$           341,167$        9.78%
Interest Sinking Fund 17,300$          11,064$           6,236$            63.96%
Other Income -$                -$                 -$                

Total Revenue 395,443$        48,040$           347,403$        12.15%

EXPENDITURES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Spent
Equipment -$                -$                 -$                0.00%
Construction Sinking 855,000$        57,935$           797,065$        6.78%
Tax Appeals -$                -$                 -$                0.00%

Total Expense 855,000$        57,935$           797,065$        6.78%

 
Expected Fund Balance 6/30/23 1,195,043$     

 
 Budgeted Ending Fund Balance 735,486$        

Month End Fund Balance 1,185,148$      

 
 

REVENUES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Rcvd
Bond Issuance -$                -$                 -$                
Local -$                -$                 -$                
Interest 2,000$            2,184$             (184)$              109.18%

Total Revenue 2,000$            2,184$             (184)$              109.18%

EXPENDITURES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Spent
Issuance Costs -                  -$                 -$                
Equipment 400,000          8,058$             391,942$        2.01%
Construction 70,000            -$                 70,000$          0.00%

Total Expense 470,000          8,058$             461,942$        

Expected Fund Balance 6/30/23 469,293$        

 
 Budgeted Ending Fund Balance 1,293$            

Month End Fund Balance  463,418$         

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
Sinking Funds

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending August 31, 2023

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
Technology Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending August 31, 2023

Prepared by the Business Office



 
REVENUES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Rcvd

Bond Issuance -$                -$                 -$                
Interest Earnings 2019 -$                8,639$             (8,639)$           
Energy Rebates -$                -$                 -$                

Total Revenue -$                8,639$             (8,639)$           #DIV/0!

EXPENDITURES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Spent
Contracted Services -                  -$                 -$                0.00%
School Bus Replacement -                  -$                 -$                0.00%
Site Improvements -                  -$                 -$                0.00%
Consulting Services -                  -$                 -$                0.00%
Legal Fees -                  -$                 -$                0.00%
Building Constr. / Imprvmt -                  -$                 -$                0.00%
Furniture,Fixtures & Equip. -$                 -$                0.00%
Bond Issuance Costs -$                 -$                0.00%
Transfer to fund 46 -                  -$                 -$                0.00%

Total Expense -                  -                   -$                0.00%

Expected Fund Balance 6/30/23 -$                

 Budgeted Ending Fund Balance -$                
Month End Fund Balance  8,639$             

 
REVENUES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Rcvd

Bond Issuance -$                -$                 -$                
Interest Earnings 2022 80,000$          347,061$         (267,061)$       
Energy Rebates -$                -$                 -$                

Total Revenue -$                347,061$         (347,061)$       #DIV/0!

EXPENDITURES: Budget Year-to-Date Balance % Spent
Contracted Services -                  -$                 -$                0.00%
Site Improvements 1,000,000       98,235$           901,765$        9.82%
Consulting Services 3,000,000       80,185$           2,919,815$     2.67%
Building Constr. / Imprvmt 19,000,000     6,287,615$      12,712,385$   33.09%
Furniture,Fixtures & Equip. 3,000,000       88,116$           2,911,884$     0.00%
Bond Issuance Costs -$                 -$                0.00%

Total Expense 26,000,000     6,554,150        19,445,850$   25.21%

Expected Fund Balance 6/30/23 37,847,311$   
 

 Budgeted Ending Fund Balance 11,847,311$   
Month End Fund Balance  31,640,222$    

For the Month Ending August 31, 2023

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
2019 Capital Projects Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
2022 Capital Projects Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending August 31, 2023

Prepared by the Business Office



Statement Period: Aug. 1 - Aug. 31, 2023

Account Number: 150363.1Account Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody Series

2019

Page 3 of 9

Market Overview
Current Period Year-to-Date

Beginning Market Value  939,658.71  912,808.45

Income

Dividends 4,352.34 31,202.60

Change in Market Value 0.00 0.00

Ending Market Value  944,011.05  944,011.05

Capital Gains
Current Period Year-to-Date

Short-term Capital Gain / (Loss) 0.00 0.00

Long-term Capital Gain / (Loss) 0.00 0.00

Asset Allocation

Account Value
Percentage Market Value

Money Markets and Cash 100% $944,011

100% $944,011

0

95,000

190,000

285,000

380,000

475,000

570,000

665,000

760,000

855,000

950,000

A S O N D J F M A M J J A

Historical Value 

.

049210 2/5                    



Account Number: 150363.1Account Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody Series

2019 Statement Period: Aug. 1 - Aug. 31, 2023

Page 4 of 9

Portfolio(s) included in Statement
Portfolio Number: 150363.1 Portfolio Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody 2019

Transaction Summary

Income Cash Principal Cash Cost
Market Value

Including Cash
Beginning Market Value 0.00 0.00 939,658.71 939,658.71

Income

Interest (4,352.34) 4,352.34

Dividends 4,352.34 4,352.34

Ending Market Value 0.00 0.00 944,011.05 944,011.05

.

ALGPBPHMHIBMGK
APHMOGNOOBFCPK
AELCCHJGPADMJK
DDLLDDLLLLDLLL



Account Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody Series

2019

Account Number: 150363.1

Statement Period: Aug. 1 - Aug. 31, 2023

Page 5 of 9

Statement of Investment Position
Cost Basis Market Value Estimated

Units Description
Symbol
Cusip Unit Total Unit Total

Unrealized
Gain / (Loss)

Annual
Income

Yield
%

Money Market Funds 
944,011.05 Michigan Class Cooperative 1.00 944,011.05 1.00 944,011.05 50,765 5.38

Liquid Asset SF8888741

Total Money Market Funds 944,011.05 944,011.05 0.00 50,765
Total Money Markets and Cash 944,011.05 944,011.05 0.00 50,765

Account Total 944,011.05 944,011.05 0.00 50,765

.

049210 3/5                    



Statement Period: Aug. 1 - Aug. 31, 2023
Account Number: 158843.1Account Name: Ludington Area School District Page 3 of 10

Market Overview
Current Period Year-to-Date

Beginning Market Value  41,078,208.61  50,228,035.54

Income
Interest 77,328.61 995,768.54
Dividends 28,601.55 284,029.30

Net Contributions/Distributions
Expenses/Fees (7,155,418.17) (17,529,962.47)

Change in Market Value 79,046.93 129,896.62
Ending Market Value  34,107,767.53  34,107,767.53

Capital Gains
Current Period Year-to-Date

Short-term Capital Gain / (Loss) 0.00 (2,726.95)
Long-term Capital Gain / (Loss) 0.00 0.00

Asset Allocation

Account Value
Percentage Market Value

Fixed Income Securities 55% $18,731,945

Short Term Investments 35% $11,792,421

Money Markets and Cash 11% $3,583,401

100% $34,107,768

0

5,250,000

10,500,000

15,750,000

21,000,000

26,250,000

31,500,000

36,750,000

42,000,000

47,250,000

52,500,000

A S O N D J F M A M J J A

Historical Value 

.

001846 2/5                    



Account Number: 158843.1Account Name: Ludington Area School District 
Statement Period: Aug. 1 - Aug. 31, 2023

Page 4 of 10

Portfolio(s) included in Statement
Portfolio Number: 158843.1 Portfolio Name: Ludington Area School District - USD

Transaction Summary

Income Cash Principal Cash Cost
Market Value

Including Cash
Beginning Market Value 0.00 0.00 41,002,512.55 41,078,208.61

Income
Interest 48,727.06 28,601.55 77,328.61
Dividends 28,601.55 28,601.55

Disbursements
Fees and Expenses (7,155,418.17) (7,155,418.17)

Purchases (6,983,200.00) 6,983,200.00

Sales & Maturities 14,061,289.56 (14,061,601.63) (312.07)

Change in Market Value 79,359.00

Ending Market Value 0.00 0.00 33,952,712.47 34,107,767.53

Statement of Accruals
Units Asset Description Payable Date Rate Amount

Interest
2,000,000 Banner Health Taxable Disc CP 10/11/2023 0.002 4,800.00

DTD 8/16/2023 0% 10/11/2023
3,000,000 Charlotte-Mecklencurg NC Hosp Disc CP 12/12/2023 0.011 33,154.17

DTD 6/20/2023 0% 12/12/2023
5,116,000 Farmer Mac 10/22/2023 0.003 13,749.25

DTD 4/22/2021 0.500% 4/22/2024
Call 10/22/2021 @ 100
Step Coupon

4,000,000 Federal Home Loan Bank 11/24/2023 0.002 6,574.44
DTD 11/24/2021 0.610% 11/24/2023
Call 05/24/2023 @ 100

5,000,000 Federal Home Loan Bank 12/28/2023 0.002 8,312.50
DTD 12/28/2021 0.950% 6/28/2024

.

ALGPBPHMHIBMGK
APHMOGNOOBFCPK
AELCCHJGPADMJK
DDLLDDLLLLDLLL



Statement Period: Aug. 1 - Aug. 31, 2023
Account Number: 158843.1Account Name: Ludington Area School District Page 5 of 10

Statement of Accruals (continued)
Units Asset Description Payable Date Rate Amount

Interest
5,000,000 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 09/15/2023 0.024 118,736.11

DTD 3/15/2023 5.150% 9/15/2023
Call 06/15/2023 @ 100

7,000,000 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Disc C/P 11/01/2023 0.007 47,250.00
DTD 2/28/2023 0% 11/1/2023
Total Interest 232,576.47
Total Accruals 232,576.47

Bond Maturity Schedule

Cost Market Value
% of

Fixed Income
Projected Annual

Income
Government & Agency Bonds

Less than 1 year 13,693,850.00 13,769,630.00 41.74 329,400.00
Total Government & Agency Bonds 13,693,850.00 13,769,630.00 41.74 329,400.00

Corporate Bonds
Less than 1 year 4,915,452.80 4,962,315.36 15.04 38,370.00

Total Corporate Bonds 4,915,452.80 4,962,315.36 15.04 38,370.00

Short Term Investments
Less than 1 year 11,792,420.82 11,792,420.82 35.74 658,520.86

Total Short Term Investments 11,792,420.82 11,792,420.82 35.74 658,520.86

Cash
Less than 1 year 2,434,387.50 2,466,800.00 7.48 132,312.50

Total Cash 2,434,387.50 2,466,800.00 7.48 132,312.50

Total 32,836,111.12 32,991,166.18 100.00 1,158,603.36

.

001846 3/5                    



Account Name: Ludington Area School District Account Number: 158843.1
Statement Period: Aug. 1 - Aug. 31, 2023

Page 6 of 10

Statement of Investment Position
Cost Basis Market Value Estimated

Units Description
Symbol
Cusip Unit Total Unit Total

Unrealized
Gain / (Loss)

Annual
Income

Yield
%

Government & Agency Bonds 
4,000,000 Federal Home Loan Bank 0.97 3,897,000.00 98.84 3,953,480.00 56,480.00 24,400 5.04

DTD 11/24/2021 0.610% 11/24/2023 3130APQT5
Call 05/24/2023 @ 100
Aaa

5,000,000 Federal Home Loan Bank 0.96 4,799,350.00 96.34 4,817,000.00 17,650.00 47,500 4.64
DTD 12/28/2021 0.950% 6/28/2024 3130AQ6V0
Aaa

5,000,000 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANKS 1.00 4,997,500.00 99.98 4,999,150.00 1,650.00 257,500 5.25
DTD 3/15/2023 5.150% 9/15/2023 3130AV5A6
Call 06/15/2023 @ 100
Total Government & Agency Bonds 13,693,850.00 13,769,630.00 75,780.00 329,400

Corporate Bonds 
5,116,000 Farmer Mac 0.96 4,915,452.80 97.00 4,962,315.36 46,862.56 38,370 4.44

DTD 4/22/2021 0.500% 4/22/2024 31422XER9
Call 10/22/2021 @ 100
Step Coupon
Total Corporate Bonds 4,915,452.80 4,962,315.36 46,862.56 38,370
Total Fixed Income Securities 18,609,302.80 18,731,945.36 122,642.56 367,770

Short Term Investments 
2,000,000 Banner Health Taxable Disc CP 0.99 1,983,200.00 99.16 1,983,200.00 109,500 5.54

DTD 8/16/2023 0% 10/11/2023 06653NXB7
3,000,000 Charlotte-Mecklencurg NC Hosp Disc CP 0.97 2,920,520.82 97.35 2,920,520.82 165,771 5.69

DTD 6/20/2023 0% 12/12/2023 16085HZC3
7,000,000 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Disc C/P 0.98 6,888,700.00 98.41 6,888,700.00 383,250 5.56

DTD 2/28/2023 0% 11/1/2023 89233HY16
Total Short Term Investments 11,792,420.82 11,792,420.82 0.00 658,521
Total Short Term Investments 11,792,420.82 11,792,420.82 0.00 658,521

.

ALGPBPHMHIBMGK
APHMOGNOOBFCPK
AELCCHJGPADMJK
DDLLDDLLLLDLLL



Account Number: 158843.1
Statement Period: Aug. 1 - Aug. 31, 2023

Account Name: Ludington Area School District Page 7 of 10

Statement of Investment Position (continued)
Cost Basis Market Value Estimated

Units Description
Symbol
Cusip Unit Total Unit Total

Unrealized
Gain / (Loss)

Annual
Income

Yield
%

Money Market Funds 
1,116,601.35 Michigan Class Cooperative 1.00 1,116,601.35 1.00 1,116,601.35 60,046 5.38

Liquid Asset SF8888741
Total Money Market Funds 1,116,601.35 1,116,601.35 0.00 60,046

Cash 
2,500,000 Treasury Bill DTD 12/1/2022 11/30/2023 0.97 2,434,387.50 98.67 2,466,800.00 32,412.50 132,313 5.41

912796ZD4
Total Cash 2,434,387.50 2,466,800.00 32,412.50 132,313
Total Money Markets and Cash 3,550,988.85 3,583,401.35 32,412.50 192,358

Account Total 33,952,712.47 34,107,767.53 155,055.06 1,218,649

.

001846 4/5                    



Ludington Area Schools
Board of Education

Meeting Minutes August 21, 2023

SPECIAL MEETING
I. Call to Order & Roll Call ~ The meeting was held in the Administration Office Boardroom, 809 East

Tinkham Avenue, Ludington. The meeting was called to order by Board President Carlson at five
o’clock p.m.

Members Present: Steve Carlson, Dr. Bret Autrey, Mike Nagle, Stephanie Reed, Sarah
Lowman, Leona Ashley
Members Absent: Scott Foster

I. Agenda Modification ~ None to report.
II. Citizen Participation ~ None to report.
III. Action Item

A. Motion by Nagle, supported by Autrey, to go into closed session for the purpose of a student
reinstatement hearing at the written request of the family pursuant to Michigan’s Open Meetings Act,
Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended, Section 8(b). Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Lowman,
Ashley. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 6-0.
The Board convened in closed session at 5:01 p.m.
The Board returned to open session at 5:30 p.m.
B. Motion by Nagle, supported by Autrey, to reinstate Student Case Number 2023-2024-1 and
the appropriate building administration develop a plan for return. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed,
Lowman, Ashley. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 6-0.

IV. Other Items of Business and Announcements ~None to report.
V. Adjournment ~ Motion by Autrey, supported by Ashley, to adjourn the meeting at 5:31 p.m.

Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Nagle, Reed, Lowman, Ashley. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes 6-0.

_______________________________________________________
Michael W. Nagle, Secretary, Board of Education

Approved ______________

(Official minutes of the Ludington Board of Education are available for public inspection during normal
business hours at the Board of Education’s central business office, 809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington,
Michigan. Phone 231-845-7303.) The Ludington Area School District is an equal opportunity employer and
provider.

Page 1 of 1



Ludington	Area	Schools	
Board	of	Education	

Minutes	of	Regular	Meeting		

August	21,	2023	

	

Page	1	of	2	

Regular	Meeting	
I. Call	to	Order	&	Roll	Call	~	The	meeting	was	held		in	the	Administration	Office	809	East	Tinkham	

Avenue,	Ludington,	Michigan,	49431.	The	meeting	was	called	to	order	by	Board	President	Carlson	at	
six	o’clock	p.m.		

Members	Present:		Steve	Carlson,	Dr.	Bret	Autrey,		Mike	Nagle,	Stephanie	Reed,		Leona	
Ashley,		Sarah	Lowman	
Members	Absent:	Scott	Foster	

II. Pledge	of	Allegiance	
III. Agenda	Modification	~	None	to	report.	
IV. Citizen	Participation	~	Seven	citizens	addressed	the	Board.	
V. Consent	Agenda	

A. Ratification	of	Bill	Payment	Per	Summary	Dated	August	21,	2023	was	approved	by	consent.	
B. Approval	of	Minutes	July	17,	2023	Regular	&	Closed	Meetings	were	approved	by	consent.	
C. Hiring	approvals	were	approved	by	consent:	

■ 	Cindy	Cooper,	After	School	Program	Lead	Teacher	
■ Melissa	Carrier,	After	School	Program	Lead	Teacher	
■ Ermalinda	Ortiz,	After	School	Program	Aide	

D. Non-Union	Annual	Contracts	were	approved	by	consent:	
■ Andy	Hamilton,	Social	Studies	
■ Heather	Miletich,	Third	Grade	
■ John	Morningstar,	Middle	School		Special	Education	
■ Melissa	Russell,	ELL	Coordinator	

E. Resignations	approved	by	consent	for	Gina	Beck,	Erin	Gutowski,	Amy	McWilliams,	Charlotte	
Nickolson	and	Pat	Shinn.	
Motion	by	Lowman,	supported	by	Reed,	to	approve	the	consent	agenda	as	written	and	presented.	
Vote:	Ayes:	Carlson,	Autrey,	Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,		Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	6-0.	

VI. Board	Committee	Reports	
A. Sarah	Lowman		presented	the	Personnel/Policy	Committee	Report.	
B. Stephanie	Reed	presented	the	Building	and	Site	Committee	Report.	
C. Stephanie	Reed		presented	the	Finance	Committee	Report.	

VII. Superintendent’s	Report	and	Comments	
A. Superintendent	Dr.	Kyle	Corlett	gave	a	presentation	on	the	State	of	the	District	and	shared	an	
award	from		Learning	by	Design	for	the	architectural	design	of	the	Ludington	Elementary	School.		

VIII. Discussion	Items	-	The	following	topics	were	submitted	for	discussion:	
A. Emily	Garland	presented	the	Unbound	Program	from	the	library	to	the	Board.	
B. The	Bond	Project	Application	and	Certificate	for	Payment	#40	was	discussed.	
C. School	meal	pricing	for	2023-2024	was	presented.	
D. A	recommendation	to	hire	Steve	Forsberg	as	high	school	principal	was	presented.	
E. A	recommendation	to	hire	Frank	Marietta	as	high	school	assistant	principal	was	presented.	
F. A	recommendation	to	purchase	two	Ford	Transit	Vans	from	Hoekstra	for	$76,200	each	to	be	
used	for	athletic	trips	for	a	total	of	$152,400	was	presented.		
G. An	update		to	the	L-4029	was	presented.	
H. The	LEA	Contract	2023-2025	was	presented.	There	are	minor	language	changes	and	a	3%	
increase	for	both	years.	

IX. Action	Items		
A. Motion	by	Autrey,	supported	by	Nagle,	to	approve	the	certificate	for	payment	on	the	school	
bond	project	and	to	authorize	the	District	to	pay	$3,431,167.25,	as	certified	by	the	architect	and	
construction	manager,	and	as	outlined	in	the	Certificate	for	Payment	#40	as	presented.	Vote:	Ayes:	
Carlson,	Autrey,	Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,	Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	6-0.	



Ludington	Area	Schools	
Board	of	Education	

Minutes	of	Regular	Meeting		

August	21,	2023	

	

Page	2	of	2	

B. Motion	by	Reed,	supported	by	Autrey		to	approve	the	school	meal	pricing	for	2023-2024	as	
presented.	Vote:	Ayes:	Carlson,	Autrey,	Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,		Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	
6-0.	
C. Motion	by	Autrey,	supported	by	Ashley,		to	approve	an	administrative	contract	for	Steve	
Forsberg	serving	as	Ludington	High	School	Principal	as	presented.		Vote:	Ayes:	Carlson,	Autrey,	
Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,		Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	6-0.	
D. Motion	by	Lowman,	supported	by	Ashley,	to	approve	an	administrative	contract	for	Frank	
Marietta	serving	as	Ludington	High	School	Assistant	Principal	pending	all	background	checks	and	
inservice	requirements	per	Board	Policy	and	Michigan	Law	as	presented.		Vote:	Ayes:	Carlson,	
Autrey,	Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,		Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	6-0.	
E. Motion	by	Ashley,	supported	by	Autrey,	to	approve	the	purchase	of	two	transit	vans	
($76,000	each)	in	the	amount	of	$152,400	from	Hoekstra	as	presented.	Vote:	Ayes:	Carlson,	Autrey,	
Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,		Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	6-0.	
F. Motion	by	Reed,	supported	by	Nagle,	to	approve	the	updated	L-4029	as	written	and	
presented.	Vote:	Ayes:	Carlson,	Autrey,	Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,		Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	
6-0.	
G. Motion	by	Autrey,	supported	by	Ashley,	to	approve	the	2023-2025	LEA	Master	Bargaining	
Agreement	as	written	and	negotiated.	The	Board	approved	administrative,	non-union	and	central	
office	staff	contract	renewals	at	the	June	meeting	to	include	increases	approved	for	the	LEA.	The	
administrative,	non-union	staff	and	Superintendent	will	receive	the	same	percent	increase.	Vote:	
Ayes:	Carlson,	Autrey,	Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,		Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	6-0.	
H. Motion	by	Autrey,	supported	by	Reed,	to	go	into	Closed	Session	Pursuant	to	Section	8(h)	of	
the	Open	Meetings	Act	for	Exempt	Material	Attorney-Client	Privilege.	A	Two-Thirds	Roll	Call	Vote	is	
required	to	convene	in	closed	session.	Roll	Call	Vote:	Ayes:	Carlson,	Autrey,	Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,		
Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	6-0.		
There	will	be	no	other	items	of	business	following	the	closed	session.	
The	Board	moved	to	closed	session	7:00	p.m	
The	Board	returned	to	open	session	at	8:00	p.m.	

X. Other	Items	of	Business	and	Announcements	~	None	to	report.	
XI. Adjournment	~	Motion	by	Autrey,		supported	by	Nagle,	to	adjourn	the	meeting	at	8:01	p.m.	Vote:	Ayes:	

Carlson,	Autrey,	Nagle,	Reed,	Ashley,		Lowman.	Nayes:	None.	Motion:	Carries	6-0.	
	
	

_______________________________________________________	
Michael	W.	Nagle,	Secretary,	Board	of	Education	

	
	
Approved	on		______________	
	
(Official	 minutes	 of	 the	 Ludington	 Board	 of	 Education	 are	 available	 for	 public	 inspection	 during	 normal	
business	 hours	 at	 the	 Board	 of	 Education’s	 Administration	 Office,	 809	 E.	 Tinkham	 Avenue,	 Ludington,	
Michigan.	 Phone	 231-845-7303.)	 	The	 Ludington	 Area	 School	 District	 is	 an	 equal	 opportunity	 employer	 and	
provider.	



September 

Dr. Kyle 

I have received two updated quotes for a Kubota UTV. One is from Freeman Creek and 
Pens. This machine will be used to help with the grounds maintenance year around. This is 
machine that is equipped with a PTO thus meaning we can purchase many different 
the future to help in maintaining the district's grounds. Items such as a snow thrower which 
already included in this quote, as well as other things like salt spreaders, 
spreader, grass seeder, blower for leaves, backhoe, etc. The machine will have many uses 
serve us for many years to come. Although we currently contract out our snow and ice 
times storms come in the middle of the day, and we could certainly clear sidewalks and 
quicker without needing to rely on a company to come again and also charge us again. I  
to ask for board approval to purchase the Kubota RTV-X1100 from Freeman Creek at the 
of $37,594.62. You will see we are receiving a significant discount too with our 

Respectfull

Tyrone 
Operations 
Ludington 

Memoyandum - Ludington 

Tyrone 
Operations 
























